
 
Sister Bay Fire Station-Small Room 

                        

1 Chair – Shane Solomon Dave Lienau 

3 Pat Duffy 

 Administrator –  Zeke Jackson Utility Clerk – Martha Baker 

1. Consider a motion to convene into Executive Session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss 
personnel and employee benefits and 19.85(f) Personnel Matters.  Considering financial, medical, 
social or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of spe-
cific personnel problems or investigation of charges against specific persons that, if discussed in pub-
lic, would likely to have substantial adverse effect on reputation of any person mentioned in such 
histories or data, or involved in such problems or investigations and 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or ne-
gotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other spec-
ified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. 

2. Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session. 
3. Consider a motion to take action, if required. 
4. Discussion on Health Benefits for 2016; consider a motion for action if appropriate. 
5. Adjourn Personnel Committee. 
6. Discussion on the following 2016 Budget Draft Requests: 

 .General Revenues 

 .General Government 
 .Administration 
 .Parks, Properties and Streets Department 

 .Skate Park and TKH Ice Rink 
 .Debt Service, and TIF 

 .Capital Reserve and Capital Improvement Program 
 Consider motions for action on the above items as appropriate. 
7. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, official or employee. 

□ □ □

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2015 2 

SMALL MEETING ROOM – SISTER BAY FIRE STATION 3 
2258 MILL ROAD, SISTER BAY, WI 4 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 5 
 6 

The September 3, 2015 meeting of the Personnel Committee was called to order by 7 
Committee Chair Pat Duffy at 11:34 A.M. 8 
 9 
Present:  Committee Chair Pat Duffy and Committee members Kathy Enquist and Nora 10 
Zacek.   11 
 12 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson and Assistant Administrator Janal 13 
Suppanz.  14 
 15 
Approval of Agenda: 16 
A motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Enquist that the Agenda for the September 3, 17 
2015 meeting of the Personnel Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All 18 
ayes. 19 
   20 
Approval of minutes as published: 21 
A motion was made by Enquist, seconded by Zacek that the minutes for the April 9, 2015 22 
meeting of the Personnel Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 23 
 24 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 25 
Duffy noted that no new correspondence had been received, and then asked if anyone 26 
wished to address a non-agenda item. No one responded.  27 
 28 
Business Items: 29 
Item No. 1. Discussion with a representative of the McClone Agency concerning 2016 30 
Health Insurance and other employee benefits; Consider a motion for action if necessary: 31 
Duffy introduced Sarah-Beth Jansen, a representative of the McClone Agency. 32 
 33 
Jackson noted that a considerable amount of dialogue has already taken place regarding 34 
“defined benefit” vs. “defined contribution” health plans, and asked if it would be possible 35 
for the Village to pay a designated amount of money for health insurance coverage per 36 
employee. 37 
 38 
Jansen replied that that would be possible, but the Village must pay at least 50% of the 39 
lowest cost single premium. She did caution that older employees do not benefit from such 40 
an arrangement, so most employers pay a straight across-the-board percentage rate of 41 
employees’ health insurance costs.   42 
 43 
A packet of information regarding health insurance premiums and HRA/HSA premiums as 44 
well as long and short term disability premiums was included in the meeting packets, and 45 
the Committee members jointly reviewed all of those documents.   46 
 47 
 48 

2



Jansen explained that the Village’s transitional relief for health insurance premiums will 1 
expire on September 30, 2017. For the most part the government said that if employers 2 
switch from their current health insurance plans they must obtain community rated health 3 
plans.  Policies are either community rated or experience rated, and it is Jansen’s opinion 4 
that obtaining a community rated policy would not be a good thing for the Village at this 5 
time. The Village’s current health care provider is United Health Care, and exact premium 6 
increases should be known by the end of September. The only other plan that Jansen might 7 
consider for the Village would be the League of Municipalities plan through WEA Trust, 8 
which is a self-funded group, but it is quite likely that the rates for that company would be 9 
higher than UHC. If a quote is requested from WEA Trust all employees would have to 10 
complete health history questionaires. At the present time the in-network deductible for 11 
single plan members is $2,850 for persons with single coverage and $5,700 for persons 12 
with family coverage. Duffy asked if any municipalities are providing high deductible 13 
health insurance coverage, and Jansen responded that most municipalities do not. She also 14 
stated that she would not recommend making any drastic changes until there is a major 15 
increase in premiums.  16 
 17 
Discussion took place regarding HRA’s, HSA’s and FSA’s, and Jansen and Jackson 18 
explained how each of those programs are administered. At the present time the Village 19 
pays 85% of health insurance premiums for employees and 100% of their HRA premiums. 20 
Jansen noted that if the Village moves from an HRA to an HSA cost savings would 21 
probably be realized, and could result in employees becoming well-informed health care 22 
consumers. Under the circumstances, and because of the high utilization rates the Village 23 
has experienced, she would suggest that the Village switch to an HSA. She also noted that 24 
she does not believe any cost savings would be realized by eliminating the FSA program. 25 
Jackson suggested that if the Village decides to switch to an HSA he would recommend 26 
that the funding for that program be “front-loaded” at the very beginning of program 27 
initiation.      28 
 29 
Discussion also took place regarding short term disability vs. long term disability coverage, 30 
and Jansen stated that she would suggest that the Village provide long term disability 31 
coverage. It was the consensus that coverage which will become effective January 1, 2016 32 
shall be obtained through The Standard.    33 
 34 
A motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Enquist that the recommendation is made to 35 
the Village Board that based upon the rate quote from The Standard which was reviewed 36 
at this meeting, the Village shall transition from providing short-term disability insurance 37 
coverage for its employees to long-term disability insurance coverage effective January 1, 38 
2016. Motion carried – All ayes. 39 
 40 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek that the recommendation is made to the 41 
Village Board that the Village shall transition from an HRA to an HSA as of December 1, 42 
2015, but the contribution rate for the HSA shall be determined at a later date. Motion 43 
carried – All ayes. 44 
 45 
Item No. 2. Update on the search for a new Finance Director: 46 
Jackson noted that a second round of Finance Director job notices has been distributed to 47 
several different agencies. To date two applications have been received and one of them 48 
does look promising, but that individual currently works for another municipality and is 49 

3



receiving a salary of approximately $100,000. The salary the Village is proposing for the 1 
new Finance Director is $50,000. Jackson is hopeful that more applications will come in, 2 
but he will contact the individual who looks promising to see if he would be interested in 3 
coming in for an interview. He also noted that he has seen a number of job 4 
announcements for Finance Directors in other municipalities as well as in the private 5 
sector.  6 
 7 
Duffy suggested that the job title mentioned in the previously mentioned job 8 
announcement be changed to “Finance Supervisor” so that more people might believe 9 
they are qualified for the job which is open, and it was the consensus that this shall occur.  10 
 11 
Item No. 3. Consider a motion to convene into Executive Session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 12 
§19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and employee benefits: 13 
At 1:02 P.M. a motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek that the Personnel 14 
Committee convene into Executive Session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss 15 
personnel and employee benefits. A roll call vote was taken on that motion and the 16 
Committee members voted in the following fashion: 17 
 18 
             Duffy – Aye;     Enquist – Aye;  Zacek – Aye. 19 
 20 
Motion carried. 21 
 22 
Item No. 4. Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session: 23 
At 2:10 P.M. a motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Enquist that the Personnel 24 
Committee reconvene into open session. Another roll call vote was taken and the 25 
Committee members voted in the following fashion: 26 
 27 

Duffy – Aye;   Enquist – Aye;  Zacek – Aye. 28 
 29 
Motion carried. 30 
 31 
Item No. 5. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 32 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Enquist that the Personnel Committee has 33 
reviewed a request from an employee, and is now recommending that the Village’s 34 
Personnel Handbook be amended in such fashion that it states that the Village will not 35 
provide health insurance coverage for anyone who is eligible for Medicare coverage. 36 
Motion carried – All ayes.  37 
 38 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek that the recommendation is made to the 39 
Village Board that effective January 1, 2016 a full-time Marina Manager position be 40 
reinstated. 41 
 42 
Item No. 6. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee or 43 
Commission: 44 
It was the consensus that the Village Board shall be informed that the Personnel Committee 45 
would like to see formal action taken on finding a replacement for the Utilities Director 46 
ASAP.   47 
 48 
 49 

4



Adjournment: 1 
A motion was made by Enquist, seconded by Zacek to adjourn the meeting of the 2 
Personnel Committee at 2:18 P.M.  Motion carried – All ayes.  3 
 4 
Respectfully submitted,  5 

 6 
Janal Suppanz,  7 
Assistant Administrator 8 

5



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2015 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The October 14, 2015 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Finance Committee was called to 6 

order by Acting Chair Dave Lienau at 3:30 P.M.  7 

 8 

Lienau noted that Shane Solomon, the Chair of the Finance Committee, has submitted a letter 9 

of resignation, and, therefore, he would be serving as Acting Chair. 10 

 11 

Committee Members Present: Acting Chair Dave Lienau and Committee Member Pat Duffy. 12 

 13 

Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 14 

 15 

Others:  Scott Baker 16 

 17 

Approval of the Agenda: 18 

A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Lienau that the Agenda for the October 14, 2015 19 

meeting of the Finance Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 20 

 21 

Approval of the minutes for the September 2, 2015 meeting of the Finance Committee: 22 

A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Lienau that the minutes for the September 2, 2015 23 

meeting of the Finance Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 24 

 25 

Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 26 

Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded. 27 

He then noted that no new correspondence had been received.  28 

 29 

Discussion Items: 30 

Item No. 2. Consider a motion to convene into executive session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 31 

§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of 32 

public funds, or conduct other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining 33 

reasons require a closed session, and Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and 34 

employee benefits: 35 

At 3:32 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Finance Committee 36 

convene into executive session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate 37 

the purchase of public properties, the investment of public funds, or conduct other specified 38 

public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, and Wis. 39 

Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and employee benefits. 40 

 41 

A roll call vote was taken on that motion, and the Committee members voted in the following 42 

fashion: 43 

    Lienau – Aye;   Duffy – Aye. 44 

Motion carried. 45 

 46 

6



Minutes for the October 14, 2015 Meeting of the Finance Committee 

 
 

-2- 
 

 

Item No. 3. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 1 

At 3:26 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Finance Committee 2 

reconvene into open session. Another roll call vote was taken, and the Committee members 3 

voted in the following fashion: 4 

    Lienau – Aye;   Duffy – Aye. 5 

Motion carried. 6 

 7 

Item No. 4. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 8 

No formal action was taken. 9 

 10 

Item No. 1. Discussion on the following 2016 Budget draft requests and consider motions for 11 

action as appropriate: 12 

 General Revenues 13 

 General Government 14 

 Administration 15 

 Parks, Properties and Streets Department 16 

 Skate Park and TKH Ice Rink 17 

 Debt Service and TIF 18 

 Capital Reserve and Capital Improvement Program 19 

A draft of the 2016 Budget for the Village of Sister Bay was included in the meeting packets, 20 

and the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. 21 

 22 

Some revisions were suggested, and Jackson took note of all of them. If the budget is approved 23 

as presented there will be a 3.51% overall property tax increase.  24 

 25 

The question arose as to whether or not it will be necessary to continue having the Door 26 

County Sheriff’s Department provide security services in 2016, and it was the consensus that 27 

this issue shall be referred to the Parks Committee. 28 

 29 

Discussion took place regarding the support which is provided to the SBAA, and Duffy 30 

suggested that at least half of that contribution be withdrawn. It was eventually the consensus 31 

that further discussion shall take place regarding this issue at an upcoming Village Board 32 

Meeting.  33 

 34 

Duffy pointed out that the Marina was charged for the services which were provided by the 35 

Parks Department employees during Marina Fest. He firmly believes the SBAA should also be 36 

charged for any services the Parks Department employees provide to that organization.  37 

 38 

A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Lienau that the Parks allocation for Marina Fest, 39 

2015 be refunded. Motion carried – All ayes.  40 

 41 

7



Minutes for the October 14, 2015 Meeting of the Finance Committee 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Finance\2015\2015_10\101415\101415 Finance Com. Meeting Minutes - Unapproved 
Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 10/14/2015; Last Printed: 10/22/2015 9:43 AM 

-3- 
 

 

A motion was made by Duffy that the SBAA shall be charged for any services which are 1 

provided to it by the Parks Department employees.  2 

 3 

Lienau and Jackson noted that it will not be possible to charge the SBAA for services provided 4 

to it by the Parks Department this year because that would be contrary to the terms of the 5 

agreement which was entered into with the SBAA, and, therefore, any changes in policy need 6 

to be re-negotiated.  7 

 8 

Duffy’s motion subsequently failed due to the lack of a second.      9 

 10 

Duffy voiced extreme displeasure with the figures for health insurance premiums which are 11 

shown in the draft budget, and stressed that he definitely wants to see that portion of the 12 

budget revised. Jackson responded that he misunderstood comments which were made by 13 

Duffy during a recent discussion, and thought Duffy wanted to see a balanced overall budget 14 

arrived at, which did occur. It was eventually the consensus that the health insurance issue shall 15 

be addressed at length within a few days at a joint meeting of the Personnel Committee and the 16 

Finance Committee. 17 

    18 

Item No. 5. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 19 

committee, official or employee: 20 

A joint meeting of the Personnel and Finance Committees will be scheduled as soon as Lienau 21 

has an opportunity to review his calendar.  22 

 23 

The issue of deciding whether or not a contract shall be entered into with the Door County 24 

Sheriff’s Department for provision of security services in 2016 shall be referred to the Parks 25 

Committee. 26 

 27 

Discussion regarding the annual support which is provided to the SBAA shall take place at an 28 

upcoming Village Board Meeting.  29 

 30 

Adjournment 31 

At 5:20 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the meeting of the Finance 32 

Committee be adjourned. Motion carried – All ayes. 33 
 34 
Respectfully submitted,  35 

 36 
Janal Suppanz,  37 
Assistant Administrator 38 
 39 
 40 

8



9



Health Care Expense Breakout FY 2016
UHC-Choice Plus Silver (10.5) * Total column includes 85% for employee and corresponding percentage for dependents

PAT Current
2015 tot ins 2015 85% Ins 2016 E + Dependent Dependent Dependent Dependent Dependent Dependent

Village Employee 85% # Dep Cost for Deps100% Total sub 80% Total 85% Total* 75% Total* 65% Total* 50% Total* 25% Total
J Bastian 133.89$       113.81$      324.69$        275.99$      0 -$             324.69$      324.69$        259.75$      -$            275.99$      -$              275.99$      -$             275.99$      -$             275.99$      -$         275.99$        
J Felhofer 646.87$       549.84$      647.06$        550.00$      1 184.25$      831.31$      831.31$        665.05$      156.61$      706.61$      138.19$       688.19$      119.76$      669.76$      92.13$         642.13$      46.06$     596.06$        
J Hirschmiller 618.71$       525.90$      787.49$        669.37$      0 -$             787.49$      787.49$        629.99$      -$            669.37$      -$              669.37$      -$             669.37$      -$             669.37$      -$         669.37$        
M Jackson 342.09$       290.78$      347.61$        295.47$      1 184.25$      531.86$      531.86$        425.49$      156.61$      452.08$      138.19$       433.66$      119.76$      415.23$      92.13$         387.59$      46.06$     341.53$        
S Mann 1,481.30$    1,259.11$   833.63$        708.59$      1 755.29$      1,588.92$  1,588.92$     1,271.14$   642.00$      1,350.58$  566.47$       1,275.05$  490.94$      1,199.52$   377.65$       1,086.23$  188.82$   897.41$        
J Polecheck 561.76$       477.50$      366.18$        311.25$      2 368.50$      734.68$      734.68$        587.74$      313.23$      624.48$      276.38$       587.63$      239.53$      550.78$      184.25$       495.50$      92.13$     403.38$        
C Sully 764.39$       649.73$      856.55$        728.07$      0 -$             856.55$      856.55$        685.24$      -$            728.07$      -$              728.07$      -$             728.07$      -$             728.07$      -$         728.07$        
J Suppanz 643.59$       547.05$      739.33$        628.43$      0 -$             739.33$      739.33$        591.46$      -$            628.43$      -$              628.43$      -$             628.43$      -$             628.43$      -$         628.43$        
F Director 339.33$       288.43$      739.33$        628.43$      0 -$             739.33$      739.33$        591.46$      -$            628.43$      -$              628.43$      -$             628.43$      -$             628.43$      -$         628.43$        
Total 5,531.93$    4,702.14$   5,641.87$     4,795.59$   1,492.29$   7,134.16$  7,134.16$     5,707.33$   1,268.45$  6,064.04$  1,119.97$    5,914.81$  970.64$      5,765.58$   746.65$       5,541.73$  373.32$   5,168.66$     

Budgeted Difference 1,005.19$   1,361.90$  1,212.67$  1,063.44$    839.59$      466.52$        
from 2015 Estimate
Difference due Finance Dir. $400.00 $400.00 400.00$      400.00$       400.00$      400.00$        

Marina net 600.19$      961.90$      812.67$     623.44$       439.59$      66.52$          
N Krauel 0 0 329.33$        279.93$      -$ -$             329.33$      279.33$      279.33$      -$              279.93$      -$             279.93$       -$             279.33$      

Utility
M Baker 986.67$       838.67$      676.94$        575.40$      2 580.32$      1,257.26$  1,257.26$     1,005.81$   493.27$      1,068.67$  435.24$       1,010.64$  377.21$      952.61$       290.16$       865.56$      145.08$   720.48$        
S Jacobson 1,602.10$    1,361.79$   870.48$        739.91$      0 870.48$      870.48$        696.38$      -$            739.91$      -$              739.91$      -$             739.91$       -$             739.91$      -$         739.91$        
P Johnson 1,072.76$    911.85$      453.52$        385.49$      3 762.25$      1,215.77$  1,215.77$     972.62$      647.91$      1,033.40$  571.69$       957.18$      495.46$      880.95$       381.13$       766.62$      190.56$   576.05$        
B Lang 1,335.30$    1,135.01$   676.94$        575.40$      3 803.74$      1,480.68$  1,480.68$     1,184.54$   683.18$      1,258.58$  602.81$       1,178.20$  522.43$      1,097.83$    401.87$       977.27$      200.94$   776.33$        
M Schell 1,163.76$    989.20$      787.49$        669.37$      1 591.93$      1,379.42$  1,379.42$     1,103.54$   503.14$      1,172.51$  443.95$       1,113.31$  384.75$      1,054.12$    295.97$       965.33$      147.98$   817.35$        
Total 6,160.59$    5,236.50$   3,465.37$     2,945.56$   2,738.24$   6,203.61$  6,203.61$     4,962.89$   2,327.50$  5,273.07$  2,053.68$    4,999.24$  1,779.86$   4,725.42$    1,369.12$   4,314.68$  684.56$   3,630.12$     

Budgeted Difference (273.61)$     37.00$        (237.26)$    (511.08)$      (921.82)$    (1,606.38)$   

HRA and HAS Comparison 2015 2016-75% 2016-65%
Deductible HRA paymen H.S.A. H.S.A. General Fund Comments:

J Bastian 2,850.00$    150.00$      178.12$       154.38$      Assessment: Closest to $0 cost increase would be to select 25% contribution to dependents, and 65% benefit level to H.S.A. for general fund
J Felhofer 5,700.00$    300.00$      356.25$       308.75$      
J Hirschmiller 2,850.00$    150.00$      178.12$       154.38$      
M Jackson 5,700.00$    300.00$      356.12$       308.75$      While it is hard to get an apples to apples comparison due to staffing changes, there is a $29760 increase from the 2016 budget.  This is due primarily to 3 factors 1.  Juliana's 
S Mann 5,700.00$    300.00$      356.12$       308.75$      Retirement, Robbie's Replacement, and Jason's Position.  Each result in increases in expenditures, totaling approximately $10,000.
J Polecheck 5,700.00$    300.00$      356.12$       308.75$      Approximately $20770 to keep GF at 85% contributions + 75% HRA which is similar to what is in place
C Sully 2,850.00$    150.00$      178.12$       154.38$      Enterprise Fund Comments
J Suppanz 2,850.00$    150.00$      178.12$       154.38$      Treating all fund areas the same results in significant decreases to the Utility, to to shifting cost to employees
F Director 2,850.00$    150.00$      178.12$       154.38$      

1,950.00$   2,315.21$    2,006.88$   New Health Care Policy increases max out of pocket by $1600 for single and $3200 for family and Co-Pays by $5 across the Board

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33


	Copy of 2016 health care estimatesv2.pdf
	Sheet1




